
 
DUE TO CONSTRUCTION AT THE DISTRICT’S OFFICES, THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD VIRTUALLY VIA ZOOM. 

The Roxborough Water & Sanitation District and Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Regular Board meeting will be held 
via video conference at ZOOM Meeting ID 874 5981 8759; Password: 694389 

          Date: Wednesday, September 21, 2022  
     Time: 8:00 am 

Board of Directors        Term Expiration 
Dave Bane, President        5/2023 
Ken Maas, Vice President       5/2023 
Keith Lehmann, Secretary       5/2025 
Christine Thomas, Treasurer       5/2025 
John Kim, Assistant Secretary       5/2025 

 
I. Call to Order as the Roxborough Water And Sanitation District (RWSD) Board of Directors regular meeting 
II. Declaration of Quorum/Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 
III. Public Comment on items not on Agenda 

 
IV. CONVENE AS THE BOARD OF THE PLUM VALLEY HEIGHTS (PVH) SUBDISTRICT OF THE RWSD BOARD 
V.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the PVH Subdistrict which are contained in and are part of the Minutes of the 
Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Minutes for the Regular Meeting on August 17, 2022.   

VI. Staff Reports 
a. General Manager’s Report 
b. Financial Reports 

 
VII. ADJOURN AS THE PVH SUBDISTRICT OF RWSD AND RECONVENE AS THE RWSD BOARD  
VIII.   Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the RWSD on August 17, 2020. 
b. Ratify Payrolls for August 31 and September 15, 2022 
c. Ratify Payments since August 17, 2022: 101831-101847, 101849-101862, 101864-101882, 101889-101895, 101899-101901, 

101903-101904, 101906-101907, 101910. 
d. Approve Payments of Claims: 101848, 101863, 101883-101888, 101896-101898, 101902, 101905, 101908-101909, 101911. 
e. Approve Change Order #3 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD for temporary VFD rental in the amount of $17,580.00 and 165 days. 
f. Approve Change Order #A.33 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD for Phase 2 Conversion of Backwash Pond to Emergency 

Containment Basin in the amount of $1,171,676.00 and 161 days. 
g. Approve Pay App #7 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD in the amount of $89,477.65. 
h. Approve Change Order #3 for Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement to add $24,171.00 and 2 days. 
i. Approve Pay App #5 for the Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement in the amount of $630,434.18 
j. Approve Change Order #1 for Roxborough Lift Station Pump Replacement to add $0.00 and 10 days. 
k. Approve Pay App #1 for the Roxborough Lift Station Pump Replacement Project in the amount of $81,294.35. 
l. Approve Amendment #2 for the Filter Optimization Study with HDR Engineering in the amount of $14,523 

 
IX.   Staff Reports 

a.     General Manager’s Report  
b      Legal Counsel Report  
c.      Operation Director’s Report 
d. Engineering Report/Water Use Graphs 
e. Financial Report 

 
X. Action Items 

a. Consider approval of the Purchase and Sale Agreement with the Town of Castle Rock for the Meadow Ditch Water Rights and 

the Bell Mountain Groundwater Rights. 

 

XI. Adjourn 



1 

 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING   
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT AND THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PLUM VALLEY HEIGHTS SUBDISTRICT OF ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION 
DISTRICT HELD  

August 17, 2022 
 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District and the Board of 
Directors of the Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict was held on August 17, 2022, at 8:00 a.m.  The meeting was  
conducted in person in the Community Room at West Metro Fire, 6222 N. Roxborough Park Drive, and via Zoom 
meeting. Notice of the meeting and the Zoom ID and Password were duly posted at the District’s Administrative 
Offices and on the District’s website, as required by State law. 
 
ATTENDANCE:   Directors: Dave Bane  President 
    Ken Maas  Vice President 
    Christine Thomas  Treasurer 
    John Kim   Assistant Secretary  
 
  Consultants: Bill Goetz, TST Infrastructure, LLC 
    Ted Snailum, TWS Financial 
    Alan Pogue, Icenogle Seaver Pogue, PC  
     

RWSD Staff: Barbara Biggs  Residents: Stephen Throneberry (via Zoom) 
Mike Marcum     
Lisa Hoover     

    Lucie Taylor   
   

    
CALL TO ORDER:   
The meeting was called to order at 8:01 a.m. by Director Bane, it was also established that a quorum was in 
attendance and there were no conflicts of interest to disclose. Upon a motion from Director Thomas, second by 
Director Kim, and unanimous vote, Director Lehmann was excused. 
 
PLUM VALLEY HEIGHTS SUBDISTRICT: 
Upon a motion by Director Thomas, second by Director Kim, and a unanimous vote, the Board convened as the 
Board of the Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of Roxborough Water and Sanitation District. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
Upon a motion by Director Thomas, second by Director Kim, and a unanimous vote, the Board approved 
the Consent Agenda which consisted of: 

A. Approved the Minutes of the Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of Roxborough Water and Sanitation 
District which are contained in and part of the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District Minutes for 
the July 20, 2022, Regular Meeting.  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
Ms. Biggs provided a report on recent activities in the Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict.  A copy of Ms. Biggs’ report 
is attached to these minutes. 
 
FINANCIAL PVH:  
Ted Snailum of TWS Financial presented the June 2022 Financial Recap for Plum Valley Heights.  Upon a motion 
from Director Thomas, second by Director Kim, and a unanimous vote, the Board approved the financial report for 
Plum Valley Heights. 
 

 



2 

 

ADJOURN AS THE PVH SUBDISTRICT OF RWSD AND RECONVENE AS THE ROXBOROUGH WATER AND 
SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD: 
Upon a motion by Director Thomas, second by Director Kim, and a unanimous vote, the Board adjourned as the 
Subdistrict Board and reconvened as the Roxborough Water and Sanitation District Board (RWSD). 
  
CONSENT AGENDA: 
Upon a motion from Director Thomas, second by Director Kim, and a unanimous vote, the Board approved the 
Consent Agenda which consisted of: 

a. Approved the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the RWSD on July 20, 2020. 
b. Ratified Payrolls for July 31 and August 15, 2022 
c. Ratified Payments since July 20, 2022: 101752-101799, 101803-101819, 101822, 101825-101829 
d. Approved Payments of Claims: 101800, 101801, 101802,101820, 101821, 101823, 101824, 101830 
e. Approved Pay App #6 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD in the amount of $62,751.82 
f. Approved Change Order #2 for Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement to add $22,728.00 

and 36 days. 
g. Approved Pay App #4 for the Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement in the amount of 

$668,129.22 
 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
Ms. Biggs provided the General Manager’s Report. A copy of Ms. Biggs’ report is attached to these minutes. 
 
LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT:   
Mr. Pogue provided an overview of the Legislative Summary and how Senate Bill 22-238 could impact RWSD.  He 
will provide further details at the September board meeting on the potential impact the Bill could have to RWSD’s 
mill levy. 
 

OPERATIONS: 
Mr. Marcum provided the Operations Report, and a copy is attached to these minutes.   
 

ENGINEERING: 
Mr. Goetz, of TST Infrastructure, provided the engineering status report to the Board.  A copy of Mr. Goetz’s report 
is attached to these minutes. 
 

FINANCIAL RWSD: 
Ted Snailum, of TWS Financial, presented the June 2022 RWSD Financial Statements to the Board.  Upon a motion 
by Director Thomas, second by Director Kim, and unanimous vote by the Board, the financial report was approved. 
 

ADJOURN: 
Upon a motion by Director Kim, second by Director Thomas, and a unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 
9:06 a.m. 
 
 
 
      Secretary of the meeting: ________________________ 



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

6222 N. Roxborough Park Rd.   Littleton, CO 80125  FAX (303) 933-3649 Phone (303) 979-7286 

www.roxwater.org 

 

 

General Manager’s Report 

Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of Roxborough Water and Sanitation District 

September 21, 2022 

Valley View Christian Church: 

• We have tentatively agreed on language for the easement from the Property Owners Association 

(POA) and are waiting for a final draft from their attorney.  

• We have agreed on an alignment for the water main that follows the bridle path through the open 

space. This alignment will simplify post-construction revegetation and provide access for future 

operation and maintenance. 

 
Titan Road Industrial Park: 

• Nothing new to report. 

 
McMakin Property: 
 

• RWSD reiterated the conditions of the will serve letter for the property for up to 16 equivalent 

residential units (EQRs). 
 
Centennial WSD Connections: 
 

• Issues with reading the meters has been resolved. 
 





 
DUE TO CONSTRUCTION AT THE DISTRICT’S OFFICES, THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD VIRTUALLY VIA ZOOM. 

The Roxborough Water & Sanitation District and Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Regular Board meeting will be held 
via video conference at ZOOM Meeting ID 874 5981 8759; Password: 694389 

          Date: Wednesday, September 21, 2022  
     Time: 8:00 am 

Board of Directors        Term Expiration 
Dave Bane, President        5/2023 
Ken Maas, Vice President       5/2023 
Keith Lehmann, Secretary       5/2025 
Christine Thomas, Treasurer       5/2025 
John Kim, Assistant Secretary       5/2025 

 
I. Call to Order as the Roxborough Water And Sanitation District (RWSD) Board of Directors regular meeting 
II. Declaration of Quorum/Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 
III. Public Comment on items not on Agenda 

 
IV. CONVENE AS THE BOARD OF THE PLUM VALLEY HEIGHTS (PVH) SUBDISTRICT OF THE RWSD BOARD 
V.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the PVH Subdistrict which are contained in and are part of the Minutes of the 
Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Minutes for the Regular Meeting on August 17, 2022.   

VI. Staff Reports 
a. General Manager’s Report 
b. Financial Reports 

 
VII. ADJOURN AS THE PVH SUBDISTRICT OF RWSD AND RECONVENE AS THE RWSD BOARD  
VIII.   Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the RWSD on August 17, 2020. 
b. Ratify Payrolls for August 31 and September 15, 2022 
c. Ratify Payments since August 17, 2022: 101831-101847, 101849-101862, 101864-101882, 101889-101895, 101899-101901, 

101903-101904, 101906-101907, 101910. 
d. Approve Payments of Claims: 101848, 101863, 101883-101888, 101896-101898, 101902, 101905, 101908-101909, 101911. 
e. Approve Change Order #3 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD for temporary VFD rental in the amount of $17,580.00 and 165 days. 
f. Approve Change Order #A.33 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD for Phase 2 Conversion of Backwash Pond to Emergency 

Containment Basin in the amount of $1,171,676.00 and 161 days. 
g. Approve Pay App #7 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD in the amount of $89,477.65. 
h. Approve Change Order #3 for Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement to add $24,171.00 and 2 days. 
i. Approve Pay App #5 for the Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement in the amount of $630,434.18 
j. Approve Change Order #1 for Roxborough Lift Station Pump Replacement to add $0.00 and 10 days. 
k. Approve Pay App #1 for the Roxborough Lift Station Pump Replacement Project in the amount of $81,294.35. 
l. Approve Amendment #2 for the Filter Optimization Study with HDR Engineering in the amount of $14,523 

 
IX.   Staff Reports 

a.     General Manager’s Report  
b      Legal Counsel Report  
c.      Operation Director’s Report 
d. Engineering Report/Water Use Graphs 
e. Financial Report 

 
X. Action Items 

a. Consider approval of the Purchase and Sale Agreement with the Town of Castle Rock for the Meadow Ditch Water Rights and 

the Bell Mountain Groundwater Rights. 

 

XI. Adjourn 

































































1 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 
 This AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(“Agreement”) dated July 27, 2021, is made and entered into as of the _____ day of ___________, 
2022, by and between ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT, a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and HDR 
Engineering, Inc. (the “Consultant”), collectively, the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties entered in to a Professional Services Agreement to complete a Filter 
Optimization Study (the Study) on July 27, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, that Study has determined that changes in chemicals are likely necessary to 
improve filter performance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires certain engineering services to provide continued data analysis 
and complete a final study report for the Larry D. Moore Water Treatment Plant; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Consultant to render such services consistent with 
the terms of this Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set 
forth, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENT 
 
1.0 SERVICES PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT 

 
1.1 Scope of Services.  The Consultant shall provide such services as are set forth in 

Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Additional Services”). The District may, from 
time to time, request changes to the Additional Services to be performed hereunder. Such changes, 
including any increase or decrease in the amount of Consultant’s compensation, shall be mutually 
agreed by the Parties, and set forth in an amendment to the Agreement.  No amendment to provide for 
a change in the Additional Services that results in an increase in the Consultant’s compensation shall 
be authorized and executed by the District unless sufficient funds have been appropriated for payment 
of the increased compensation. The Consultant shall have no right or authority, express or implied, to 
take any action, expend any sum, incur an obligation, or otherwise obligate the District in any manner 
whatsoever, except to the extent specifically provided in this Amendment.    

 
 
2.0 Compensation and Billing 

 
2.1 Compensation.  Compensation for satisfactory performance of the Additional Services 

shall be based on the fee/rate schedule set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein, 
which shall be subject to an equitable adjustment at the beginning of each calendar year, and shall not 
exceed Fourteen Thousand Five Hundred Twenty-Three Dollars ($14,523), which has been budgeted 
and appropriated by the District in the current year of performance of the Services.  

 



2 
 

2.2 Compensation for Change in Services.  The Consultant shall not receive additional 
compensation for any change in Services unless the Parties have executed an amendment to the 
Agreement and this Amendment No. 2 authorizing the change in Services and the payment of 
additional compensation. It is specifically understood that oral requests and/or approvals of a change 
in Services and payment of additional compensation are barred and unenforceable. Any amendment to 
this Agreement resulting in additional compensation to be paid by the District is subject to annual 
appropriations.     
 
3.0 TIME OF PERFORMANCE 
 

3.1 Commencement and Completion of Work.  The Services to be performed pursuant to 
this Agreement shall commence upon execution of this Amendment No. 2 (the “Effective Date”).  
Failure to commence work in a timely manner and/or to diligently pursue work to completion may be 
grounds for termination of this Agreement. 

 
4.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
4.1 Other Sections and Exhibits Remain Unchanged. Unless otherwise expressly 

amended herein, all provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 

4.2 Counterparts. This Amendment No. 2 may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall 
constitute one and the same document. 
 

 
 
 
 

(Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank.) 



3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 

DISTRICT: 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION 
DISTRICT 

By: Barbara J. Biggs 
Its:  General Manager 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________
_ By:    ____________________________ 
Its:    _____________________________ 

CONSULTANT: 

HDR Engineering, Inc. 

By: Ken Lowrey 
Its: Vice President 

Melissa A. Gray
Quality and Records Coordinator



 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES & FEE/RATE SCHEDULE 
 

 
  







WORK BREAKDOWN STRUCTURE

Fee Estimate for: Roxborough Filter Assessment - Amendment No. 2
Date: August 22, 2022
Firm Name: HDR Engineering, Inc. 

Jenn Stillman

Project Manager

Jeff Glover 

QA/QC 

Sean Schumacher

Process Engineer

Tiffany Schick

Accounting

Donna Velasquez

Administrative 

Support

Total Labor

(Hours)

Total Labor

($)

Total Expenses

($)

Total 

Subconsultant

($)

Total Labor &

Expenses

($)

Hourly Billing Rate* $237.00 $275.00 $115.00 $115.00 $95.00
Task Series 100 - Project Management 10 0 0 16 0 26 $4,210.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,210.00

101 - Project Management (Base Task Order) 0 $0.00 $0.00
102 - Project Management Amendment No. 1 0 $0.00 $0.00

103 - Project Management Amendment No. 2 (Amendment 2) 10 16 26 $4,210.00 $4,210.00

Task Series 200 - Site Visits and Meetings (Base Task Order) 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

201 - Site Visits (x 1, 8hr each) 0 $0.00 $0.00
202 - Meeting with Roxborough (x 2, 1 hr each) 0 $0.00 $0.00

Task Series 300 - Data Collection and Evaluation (Base Task Order) 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

301 - Background Material Review 0 $0.00 $0.00
301 - Data Evaluation 0 $0.00 $0.00

Task Series 400 - Filter Assessment Report (Base Task Order) 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

401 - Filter Assessment Report 0 $0.00 $0.00

Task Series 500 - Demonstration Testing 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

501 - Prepare Application for CDPHE - 2 total 0 $0.00 $0.00
502 - Coordination Calls with CDPHE and RWSD - (24) calls, 1 hr each, includes 
agenda

0 $0.00 $0.00

503 - Chemical procurement assistance 0 $0.00 $0.00
504 - On-site time - (4) 8-hour days 0 $0.00 $0.00
505 - Analysis of Results and Report Preparation 0 $0.00 $0.00

Task Series 600 -  Basis of Design Report (Removed from Amendment 1)
0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

601 - Coordination Calls with CDPHE and RWSD - (4) calls, 1 hr each + agenda 
and notes

0 $0.00 $0.00

602 - Prepare Draft BDR 0 $0.00 $0.00
603 - Resolve Comments and Prepare Final BDR 0 $0.00 $0.00

Task Series 700 - Demonstration Test Report & Data Analysis (Amendment 

2)
14 3 52 0 2 71 $10,313.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,313.00

701 - Coordination Calls with RWSD - (4) calls between September and 
December 2022, 1/2 hr each + agenda

4 4 8 $1,408.00 $1,408.00

702 - Data Analysis and Graphic Development 4 8 12 $1,868.00 $1,868.00

703 - Report Preparation 6 3 40 2 51 $7,037.00 $7,037.00

TOTAL HOURS 24 3 52 16 2 97

TOTAL LABOR $5,688.00 $825.00 $5,980.00 $1,840.00 $190.00 $14,523.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,523.00

Task

Labor and Expenses



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

2 

 

General Manager’s Report 
September 21, 2022 

Information Only 
 
Please plan to attend the Christmas Party for Board members, spouses, staff and partners on December 7 at 
5:00 p.m. in the wine grotto at the Clubhouse at Ravenna. 

 
Ongoing Drought: 
• Aurora Water staff will recommend City Council declare a Stage I drought in January 2023. 

o Outdoor watering will only be allowed 2 days per week with no watering allowed 
between 10:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m. 

o Will impose Drought/Water Availability Surcharges per 1,000 gallons of use that will 
need to be added to RWSD rates: 

Drought/Water Availability Surcharge 
January 2022 Surcharge/1,000 gallons 

 Usage (gal.)  Normal  Stage I  Stage II  Stage III 
 Tier 1 – 0-5,000  $ --  $ --  $ --  $ -- 
 Tier 2 – 5,001-10,000 $ --  $0.83  $2.48  $ 7.55 
 Tier 3 – 10,001-20,000 $ --  $0.84  $2.52  $ 7.68 
 Tier 4 – 20,001 + $ --  $1.16  $3.47  $10.56 

 
• In addition to the Surcharges the Water Supply Agreement with Aurora requires RWSD 

watering restrictions to be at least as stringent as the City’s. This will require us to prohibit 
watering between 10-6 rather than or current 11-6. 

• I have attached an article regarding an agreement on water conservation by several large 
providers throughout the Colorado basin states. 

 
Past Due Accounts: 

• As of August 31, we had 10 accounts with a past due balance of $6,301, compared to 18 accounts with 
a past due balance of $6,806 as of July 31. 

• Nearly half of the past due balance is for one house under construction in Ravenna that has been 
contacted and committed to making payment.  

• Eight (8) accounts were posted for shut-off on 9/6; service was shut-off at 2 residences: one that is 
vacant, and a second rental property that is under an eviction notice. 
 



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

3 

 

 
 
Dominion Water and Sanitation District/Sterling Ranch: 

• Day-to-day operations going well.  
• We continue to provide temporary service to Sterling Ranch Filing 4. Dominion is billed for the normal 

cost for water treatment, and Sterling Ranch CAB is billed $1.25/1,000 gallons to “wheel” the water 
through RWSD’s system. Dominion’s system to serve Filing 4 should be in place by November 30, 2022. 

• There has been a rash of odor complaints from residents about the Dominion force main made to 
RWSD, CDPHE, EPA, and Douglas County. RWSD referred residents and agencies to Dominion staff. 

• There were an additional 51 Certificates of Occupancy (CO) issued in Sterling Ranch in July bringing the 
total number of COs that have been issued in Sterling Ranch to 1,664 for a monthly Wastewater 
Operations Charge of $33,280.  

• Year to date development summary: 

 
 

Delinquent Accounts

August 2022

Total Amount 
Past Due 30 days 

$12,583

Total Amount 
Past Due 60 days 

$4,056

Total Amount 
Past Due 90 days 

$6,301



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

4 

 

• Under the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the Wastewater Treatment Plant, RWSD tracks new 
building permits issued in Sterling Ranch. Dominion is invoiced $300 for each residential equivalent 
building permit in the prior year.  

 
 

Projects: 
• Work at the water treatment plant including the high-zone pump serving Dominion, restroom, office 

addition, Phase 2 of the backwash pond conversion, and new entrance is progressing slowly. 
• The Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement Project is progressing. The contractor worked 

overnight 9/1-2, and the District posted all nearby residents and provided ear plugs. Work in the 
northbound lanes should be complete and the road paved by the end of September. 

o Once work in the northbound lanes is complete, work will shift to the southbound lanes to 
complete the tie ins to the west. There may be additional overnight work. 

o Traffic control plans for the next phases of work are under development with Douglas County. 
• Aurora is reviewing the proposed location for the relocated Rampart Pump Station to a parcel owned by 

Don and Carrie Haberer. Once Aurora has approved the site, negotiations with the Haberers will 
proceed. 
 

Public Outreach/Opportunities: 
• We continue to do weekly updates on the transmission main replacement project on the website. 
• We did additional postings on the overnight work that closed the intersection of Village Circle East 

(north) and Rampart Range Road. 
• Two day per week watering limitations go into effect May 1 through October 1. Below is the report on 

recent watering violations that will update monthly.  
 



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

5 

 

 



 



8/30/22, 8:58 AM Major municipal water providers across Colorado River Basin announce commitment to significant reductions in water use | Denv…

https://www.denverwater.org/news/major-municipal-water-providers-across-colorado-river-basin-announce-commitment-significant 1/5

   

Major municipal water providers across
Colorado River Basin announce commitment
to signi�cant reductions in water use

08/24/22

AUGUST 24, 2022 — Large water providers from across the Colorado River Basin announced today a

commitment to substantially expand existing efforts to conserve water, reduce demands and expand

reuse and recycling of water supplies.

The agreement includes water providers in both the upper and lower basins of the Colorado River,

stretching from Colorado’s Front Range to Las Vegas and Los Angeles. The providers invite other

utilities in the basin to join in the commitment to increasing water-use ef�ciency and reducing the

demand for water.

The agreement comes amid a two-decade drought on the river that affects 40 million people who rely

on it for drinking water, agriculture, power production, landscape irrigation, recreation and more.

Demands for water in the basin have exceeded available supply, reducing storage levels in lakes Mead

and Powell to critically low levels.

The water providers are outlining their commitments in a Memorandum of Understanding that was

delivered to Bureau of Reclamation Commissioner Camille Touton today. Some providers have

committed to pursuing the MOU’s intent while awaiting �nal approval through their various

governing boards.

Customer Care:

303-893-2444 (tel:303-893-2444)

Pay My Bill (/pay-my-bill) Manage My Account
(https://myaccount.denverwater.org)

(/)

What can we help you �nd today?

tel:303-893-2444
https://www.denverwater.org/pay-my-bill
https://myaccount.denverwater.org/
https://www.denverwater.org/


8/30/22, 8:58 AM Major municipal water providers across Colorado River Basin announce commitment to significant reductions in water use | Denv…

https://www.denverwater.org/news/major-municipal-water-providers-across-colorado-river-basin-announce-commitment-significant 2/5

“We are developing prudent municipal water conservation actions that every community that relies

on the Colorado River should be using,” water providers said in the letter to Touton. Moving forward,

“We will describe the steps our organizations will take now and codify our commitment to continued

effort as we work to ensure our river and the communities it serves continue to thrive. We sincerely

hope our commitment to action inspires other stakeholders that share the river to do the same.”

Speci�cally, the agreement will focus on several key areas as pathways to cutting water use,

including:

1. Develop programs to replace non-functional or passive cool weather turf grass (grass that serves

primarily a decorative role and is otherwise unused) with drought- and climate-resistant

landscaping, while maintaining vital urban landscapes and tree canopies where appropriate.

2. Increase water reuse and recycling programs where feasible.

3. Continue and expand conservation and ef�ciency programs to accelerate water savings.

“Achieving the protection storage volumes needed to preserve water and hydropower operations

within the Colorado River basin cannot be met by a singular country, basin, state, or water use

sector,” continued the letter to BOR. “While municipal water use represents only a small fraction of

total Colorado River water use, progress begins with one and then many until we are all moving in the

same direction.”

While not all the conservation strategies under consideration may make sense for each community,

utilities say the agreement demonstrates the commitment that municipal water providers have not

only to coordinating and collaborating on strategies to conserve and manage water demands, but to

also help protect the Colorado River system.

Links to the 

letter to the BOR (https://www.denverwater.org/sites/default/�les/mou-cover-letter.pdf), 

the MOU (https://www.denverwater.org/sites/default/�les/water-ef�ciency-mou.pdf) and a 

support letter from the Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District

(https://www.denverwater.org/sites/default/�les/sewcd-letter-re-mou.pdf)

.

Quotes from signatories to the BOR letter:

“The water supply challenges we are facing on the Colorado River are accelerating at an alarming

pace. Everyone who relies on the Colorado River must take bold and immediate action to reduce

their use on this vital water source,” said Adel Hagekhalil, general manager of the Metropolitan

Water District of Southern California. “This agreement represents our commitment to working with

(/)

What can we help you �nd today?

https://www.denverwater.org/sites/default/files/mou-cover-letter.pdf
https://www.denverwater.org/sites/default/files/water-efficiency-mou.pdf
https://www.denverwater.org/sites/default/files/sewcd-letter-re-mou.pdf
https://www.denverwater.org/


8/30/22, 8:58 AM Major municipal water providers across Colorado River Basin announce commitment to significant reductions in water use | Denv…

https://www.denverwater.org/news/major-municipal-water-providers-across-colorado-river-basin-announce-commitment-significant 3/5

our municipal partners on the river to come up with innovative, collaborative approaches to better

manage our Colorado River supplies and promote a more sustainable future for our communities.”

“With climate change and aridi�cation affecting the entire Basin, improving the health of the

Colorado River system requires a swift and collective effort of all water users — in all sectors — to

reduce water use and implement actionable strategies, policies and programs to protect this vital

resource and balance water supplies with demands,” said John Entsminger, Southern Nevada Water

Authority general manager.

“Climate change and overuse of the Colorado River have put us squarely within the crisis we long saw

coming. The bottom line now: We all need to work on solutions, no matter our individual impacts on

river �ows,” said Jim Lochhead, CEO of Denver Water. “While we have long been a conservation

leader, Denver Water has consistently said it is prepared to do even more, and the commitments

contained in this agreement re�ect our readiness to take further important steps to keep more water

in the Colorado River Basin.”

“Water issues in the arid west are accelerating,” stated Aurora Water General Manager Marshall

Brown. “Aurora is embracing these conservation pathways through Colorado’s largest potable reuse

system, an aggressive turf replacement rebate program and a new ordinance that prohibits

nonfunctional turf in new developments. We’re doing what needs to be done to ensure a reliable

water supply for our community in unpredictable times and we challenge other municipalities to do

the same.”

“Colorado Springs Utilities is committed to conservation programming that ensures a clean, reliable

water supply for years to come. Building on our customers’ successful 41% reduction in per capita

use since 2001, we continue to pursue and implement water ef�ciency and reuse initiatives that

support our vibrant community and make wise use of this valuable resource,” said Colorado Springs

Utilities CEO Aram Benyamin.

“The Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District supports the efforts of the Upper Colorado

River Commission (UCRC), the State of Colorado, and municipal and agricultural water providers in

the basin, to collaborate in bringing the system into balance,” said Jim Broderick, executive director of

the district.

CONTACTS

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California: 

Bob Muir, rmuir@mwdh2o.com (mailto:rmuir@mwdh2o.com), 213-324-5213 

Maritza Fair�eld at mfair�eld@mwdh2o.com (mailto:mfair�eld@mwdh2o.com), 909-816-7722

(tel:909-816-7722)

(/)

What can we help you �nd today?

mailto:rmuir@mwdh2o.com
mailto:mfairfield@mwdh2o.com
tel:909-816-7722
https://www.denverwater.org/


8/30/22, 8:58 AM Major municipal water providers across Colorado River Basin announce commitment to significant reductions in water use | Denv…

https://www.denverwater.org/news/major-municipal-water-providers-across-colorado-river-basin-announce-commitment-significant 4/5

Southern Nevada Water Authority: 

Bronson Mack, bronson.mack@lvvwd.com (mailto:bronson.mack@lvvwd.com), 702-822-8543

(tel:702-822-8543)

Denver Water: 

Todd Hartman, todd.hartman@denverwater.org (mailto:todd.hartman@denverwater.org); 

Travis Thompson, travis.thompson@denverwater.org (mailto:travis.thompson@denverwater.org); 

Media line: 303-628-6700 (tel:303-628-6700)

Aurora Water: 

Greg Baker, gbaker@auroragov.org (mailto:gbaker@auroragov.org), 303-739-7081 (tel:303-739-

7081)

Colorado Springs Utilities: 

Jennifer Jordan, jbjordan@csu.org (mailto:jbjordan@csu.org), 719-668-3848 (tel:719-668-3848)

Pueblo Water: 

Joe Cervi, jcervi@pueblowater.org (mailto:jcervi@pueblowater.org), 719-584-0212 (tel:719-584-

0212)

Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District: 

Chris Woodka, chris@secwcd.com (mailto:chris@secwcd.com), 719-766-4253 (tel:719-766-4253)

###

Denver Water proudly serves high-quality water and promotes its ef�cient use to 1.5 million people

(/about-us/how-we-operate/key-facts) in the city of Denver and many surrounding suburbs.

Established in 1918, the utility is a public agency funded (/about-us) by water rates, new tap fees and

the sale of hydropower, not taxes. It is Colorado’s oldest and largest water utility. Subscribe to TAP

(/tap/subscribe) to hydrate your mind, and follow us on Facebook

(https://www.facebook.com/DenverWater/), Twitter (https://twitter.com/DenverWater) and

Instagram (https://www.instagram.com/denver_water).

Customer Care

(/)

What can we help you �nd today?

mailto:bronson.mack@lvvwd.com
tel:702-822-8543
mailto:todd.hartman@denverwater.org
mailto:travis.thompson@denverwater.org
tel:303-628-6700
mailto:gbaker@auroragov.org
tel:303-739-7081
mailto:jbjordan@csu.org
tel:719-668-3848
mailto:jcervi@pueblowater.org
tel:719-584-0212
mailto:chris@secwcd.com
tel:719-766-4253
https://www.denverwater.org/about-us/how-we-operate/key-facts
https://www.denverwater.org/about-us
https://www.denverwater.org/tap/subscribe
https://www.facebook.com/DenverWater/
https://twitter.com/DenverWater
https://www.instagram.com/denver_water
tel:303-893-2444
https://www.denverwater.org/


8/30/22, 8:58 AM Major municipal water providers across Colorado River Basin announce commitment to significant reductions in water use | Denv…

https://www.denverwater.org/news/major-municipal-water-providers-across-colorado-river-basin-announce-commitment-significant 5/5

 (/tap)

303-893-2444 (tel:303-893-2444)

Emergencies

303-628-6801 (tel:303-628-6801)

About Us (/about-us)

Careers (/careers)

Contact Us (/contact)

Contracts & Bids (/contractors/bid-and-contract-opportunities)

Design Standards (/contractors/construction-information/design-standards)

Investor/Financial Info (/about-us/investor-relations)

Lead Reduction Program (/your-water/water-quality/lead)

Operating Rules (/about-us/how-we-operate/operating-rules)

Vendor Inquiry (/contractors/vendor-inquiry)

© 2022 Denver Water. All rights reserved.  |  Notice of Nondiscrimination (/notice-

nondiscrimination)  |  Privacy Policy (/privacy-policy)

    

(/)

What can we help you �nd today?

https://www.denverwater.org/tap
tel:303-893-2444
tel:303-628-6801
https://www.denverwater.org/about-us
https://www.denverwater.org/careers
https://www.denverwater.org/contact
https://www.denverwater.org/contractors/bid-and-contract-opportunities
https://www.denverwater.org/contractors/construction-information/design-standards
https://www.denverwater.org/about-us/investor-relations
https://www.denverwater.org/your-water/water-quality/lead
https://www.denverwater.org/about-us/how-we-operate/operating-rules
https://www.denverwater.org/contractors/vendor-inquiry
https://www.denverwater.org/notice-nondiscrimination
https://www.denverwater.org/privacy-policy
https://twitter.com/DenverWater
https://www.facebook.com/DenverWater/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/denverwater/
https://www.instagram.com/denver_water
https://www.youtube.com/user/YourDenverWater
https://www.denverwater.org/


August Operations Report 

 

Water Plant 

 
The water treatment plant has been running smoothly.  In August, the plant was operational for 
31 days with an average plant production of 2.0 MGD and a max day of 3.3 MGD.   
 
The original High Zone Pump contract remains the same.  We are still awaiting the arrival of the 
permanent VFD and there are a couple punch list items left.  The VFD has been pushed out until 
October now. 
 
The bathroom and office change order has not progressed much since last month.  We are still 
waiting for the fire inspectors’ comments to be addressed. 
 
The Sodium Hypochlorite generator is installed, the manufacture has completed the start-up 
and the only item left is to integrate it into SCADA. 
 
Backwash Pond Phase 2 has begun, parts are beginning to arrive, electrical conduits are 
installed waiting on Douglas County permitting to continue.  
 
August production was 62 million gallons of treated water, 16.6 million gallons of that was for 
Sterling Ranch. 
 

Lift Stations 

 
The lift stations are running smoothly.   
 
Velocity is working hard on the new pump installation.  We’ve completed one shut-down for a 
blind flange installation, this was done so they could start demolition of the old pads.  The new 
pump pedestal has been installed.  Anticipated pump start-up is 9/15 but may push due to 
some lead times to get the specified wire. 
 
August saw 24 million gallons of sewage pumped to Littleton-Englewood.  Approximately 4.1 
million was conveyed for Sterling Ranch. 
 



August Operations Report 

 

Field 

 
The field had 252 locates for the month of August.   
 
Our endpoint replacement continues to keep the field guys busy; they replaced just over 700 
endpoints to date.  We will continue to push to complete prior to the CDMA contract ending 
after this year. 
 
American West continues to install pipe, they had an overnight crossing for the Village Circle 
East, northern, intersection on 9/1-9/2 which went very smooth.  Next steps are paving the 
north bound lane, shifting traffic, installing the east/ west laterals and testing pipe.  



August Operations Report 

 

Monthly Averages 



 

 

5655 S. Yosemite St.  |  Suite 101  |  Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 

www.tstinfrastructure.com  |  T: 303.799.5197  |  F: 303.768.0441 

 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Roxborough Water and Sanitation District 
  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: TST Infrastructure, LLC 
  Michael Gerstner 

 
SUBJECT: Engineering Status Report 
 
DATE:  September 16, 2022 
 
 
I. DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 

 
Berkeley Homes – Construction plans have been approved.  The geotechnical 
report has been received and reviewed.  Certain modifications to the plans will be 
required based on the geotechnical report.  The required easements have not yet 
been submitted by the developer.  Construction of water and sewer lines is not 
expected to begin until late 2022 or early 2023 pending relocation of overhead 
electric lines. (No Change) 
 
Valley View Church – VVC continues to work on obtaining easements for the 
pipeline.  VVCC has requested changes to the District’s standard easement 
documents that are generally acceptable to the District and a route has been 
identified. 
 
Sherwin Williams Store – District staff and TST have met with the developer to 
discuss requirements for water and sewer.  Revised drawings have not been 
received.  (No Change) 
 
Titan Road Vehicle Storage (Luxury Cardominiums) – Revised plans have been 
received from the developer.   
 

II. RAMPART WATER LINE REPLACEMENT  
 
Installation of pipeline is in progress.  To date, approximately 3,300 lf of 24” 
pipeline has been installed.  The contractor is preparing for asphalt replacement 
on the north bound lanes. 



 

 

 
 
 
Memorandum 
September 16, 2022 
Page 2  
 

 

5655 S. Yosemite St.  |  Suite 101  |  Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 

www.tstinfrastructure.com  |  T: 303.799.5197  |  F: 303.768.0441 

 

 
III. RAMPART PUMP STATION RELOCATION 
 

A meeting was completed with Aurora on the feasibility of the proposed site on 
Haberer property near the dam based on system hydraulics.  Exhibits have been 
prepared for discussions with Aurora and Haberer.  The meeting was positive 
and awaiting comments from Aurora. 
 

IV. WTP HIGH ZONE PUMP FOR DWSD 
 

The new pump and piping have been installed and the pump is operational using 
the temporary VFD.  Delivery of the permanent VFD is now expected by the end 
of September.  The pump is not currently in service pending completion of 
DWSD’s work on their system, which is not expected to occur until late October. 
 

V. WATER TREATMENT PLANT OVERFLOW POND (PHASE 2) 
 

A change order has been prepared. The water pipe installation to the backwash 
pond is nearing completion.  Additional yard pipe materials for the backwash 
drain pipe and pump return have been delivered to the site. 
 

VI. LIFT STATION PUMP 201 REPLACEMENT 
 

The pump and electrical equipment are installed.  Startup of electrical equipment 
is scheduled for September 20th and pump startup is scheduled for September 
22nd. 
 

VII. TRANSITION VAULT DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
 
A conceptual scope and design requirements have been developed and 
reviewed with District staff.  Survey of the site has been received and is under 
review. 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
Memorandum 
September 16, 2022 
Page 3  
 

 

5655 S. Yosemite St.  |  Suite 101  |  Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 

www.tstinfrastructure.com  |  T: 303.799.5197  |  F: 303.768.0441 

 

 
 
VIII. GIS 
 

The latest IT pipes data showing condition of existing sewer lines is being added 
to the GIS.  A new map showing fire hydrant radius was developed. 
 

IX. DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM ISOLATION VALVES 
 

Materials have been ordered and verification of the materials received is in 
progress. (No Change) 

 
X. SEWER LINING PROJECT 
 

A GIS map has been prepared to show defect locations and to assist in 
coordination of repairs with Roxborough Park Foundation planned paving 
projects. The Foundation has recently advised the District that no paving will be 
performed in 2022, and that both inbound and outbound lanes on Roxborough 
Drive will be paved in 2023.  The map will be updated as repairs which impact 
the proposed paving are completed. (No Change) 



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  9/12/2022 Rev'd

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

T
R

E
A

T
E

D
 W

A
T

E
R

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 (

M
G

A
L

)
ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT

TREATED WATER PRODUCTION 
2020-2022

2020 2021 2022

WATERING RESTRICTIONS
May 1 - October 1 Annually

New Lawn Permits
Issued Annually

May-Sept

No Lawn Watering
(Only Trees and Shrubs) 

Begin Watering                      
2 times/week 
with 3 groups



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  9/12/2022 Rev'd

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

16.0

18.0

20.0

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 P

re
c
ip

 (
in

.)
  
 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT
CUMULATIVE PRECIPITATION 

2020-2022

2020 2021 2022 5-Year Average (2017-2021)

YEAR TO DATE
Precipitation Totals 

Aug 2020:      7.27"
Aug 2021:    15.89"
Aug 2022:    12.29"

Aug 5-Year Average 11.97"



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  9/12/2022 Rev'd

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

P
re

c
ip

 (
in

.)
  
 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT
PRECIPITATION 

2019-2022

2020 2021 2022 5-Year Average (2017-2021)

Annual Precipitation Totals

2020: 11.83"
2021: 17.16"

YTD 2022: 12.29"

5-Year Average: 15.58"
Min. Precip/Year : 10.68" (1956)
Max. Precip/ Year: 32.07" (2015) 



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  9/12/2022 Rev'd

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

D
E

M
A

N
D

 P
E

R
 E

Q
R

  
(G

P
D

/E
Q

R
)

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT
AVERAGE DEMAND PER EQR

2020 2021 2022 Average (2017-2021)

Hydrant Flushing  

Ravenna Pipeline for Pond         

Tank Cleaning



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  9/12/2022 Rev'd

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

D
E

M
A

N
D

 P
E

R
 E

Q
R

 -
(G

P
D

/E
Q

R
)

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT
MAX DAY DEMAND PER EQR

2020 2021 2022

Hydrant Flushing  

Ravenna Pipeline for Pond              

Tank Cleaning

High Demand Day 

and long pump run 

times

Zone 4 Flushing for 

Water Quality Issues

High Temps with

Low Precipitation

Winter Schedule

and topping off 

tanks

Two water main breaks in 

the same day



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  9/12/2022 Rev'd

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

D
E

M
A

N
D

 P
E

R
 E

Q
R

  
(G

P
D

/E
Q

R
)

ROXBOROUGH NW DOUGLAS COUNTY
AVERAGE DEMAND PER EQR

2020 2021 2022 Average (2018-2021)



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  9/12/2022 Rev'd

0

1

2

3

4

5

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

T
R

E
A

T
E

D
 W

A
T

E
R

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 (

M
G

A
L

)
ROXBOROUGH NW DOUGLAS COUNTY

TREATED WATER PRODUCTION 
2020-2022

2020 2021 2022

WATERING RESTRICTIONS
May 1 - October 1 Annually

No Lawn Watering
(Only Trees and Shrubs) 





























































 
DUE TO CONSTRUCTION AT THE DISTRICT’S OFFICES, THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD VIRTUALLY VIA ZOOM. 

The Roxborough Water & Sanitation District and Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Regular Board meeting will be held 
via video conference at ZOOM Meeting ID 874 5981 8759; Password: 694389 

          Date: Wednesday, September 21, 2022  
     Time: 8:00 am 

Board of Directors        Term Expiration 
Dave Bane, President        5/2023 
Ken Maas, Vice President       5/2023 
Keith Lehmann, Secretary       5/2025 
Christine Thomas, Treasurer       5/2025 
John Kim, Assistant Secretary       5/2025 

 
I. Call to Order as the Roxborough Water And Sanitation District (RWSD) Board of Directors regular meeting 
II. Declaration of Quorum/Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 
III. Public Comment on items not on Agenda 

 
IV. CONVENE AS THE BOARD OF THE PLUM VALLEY HEIGHTS (PVH) SUBDISTRICT OF THE RWSD BOARD 
V.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the PVH Subdistrict which are contained in and are part of the Minutes of the 
Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Minutes for the Regular Meeting on August 17, 2022.   

VI. Staff Reports 
a. General Manager’s Report 
b. Financial Reports 

 
VII. ADJOURN AS THE PVH SUBDISTRICT OF RWSD AND RECONVENE AS THE RWSD BOARD  
VIII.   Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the RWSD on August 17, 2020. 
b. Ratify Payrolls for August 31 and September 15, 2022 
c. Ratify Payments since August 17, 2022: 101831-101847, 101849-101862, 101864-101882, 101889-101895, 101899-101901, 

101903-101904, 101906-101907, 101910. 
d. Approve Payments of Claims: 101848, 101863, 101883-101888, 101896-101898, 101902, 101905, 101908-101909, 101911. 
e. Approve Change Order #3 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD for temporary VFD rental in the amount of $17,580.00 and 165 days. 
f. Approve Change Order #A.33 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD for Phase 2 Conversion of Backwash Pond to Emergency 

Containment Basin in the amount of $1,171,676.00 and 161 days. 
g. Approve Pay App #7 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD in the amount of $89,477.65. 
h. Approve Change Order #3 for Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement to add $24,171.00 and 2 days. 
i. Approve Pay App #5 for the Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement in the amount of $630,434.18 
j. Approve Change Order #1 for Roxborough Lift Station Pump Replacement to add $0.00 and 10 days. 
k. Approve Pay App #1 for the Roxborough Lift Station Pump Replacement Project in the amount of $81,294.35. 
l. Approve Amendment #2 for the Filter Optimization Study with HDR Engineering in the amount of $14,523 

 
IX.   Staff Reports 

a.     General Manager’s Report  
b      Legal Counsel Report  
c.      Operation Director’s Report 
d. Engineering Report/Water Use Graphs 
e. Financial Report 

 
X. Action Items 

a. Consider approval of the Purchase and Sale Agreement with the Town of Castle Rock for the Meadow Ditch Water Rights and 

the Bell Mountain Groundwater Rights. 

 

XI. Adjourn 



Error! Unknown document property name. F-1 
 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated as of 
_________, 2022 (the “Agreement Date”) is between ROXBOROUGH WATER AND 
SANITATION DISTRICT, a Colorado special district and political subdivision (the “Seller”), and 
the TOWN OF CASTLE ROCK, a Colorado home rule municipality, acting by and through the 
CASTLE ROCK WATER ENTERPRISE (the “Buyer”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, Seller owns, or will own prior to closing of the specified purchase and sale, 

certain real property interests, infrastructure, water rights and contractual rights that are more fully 
described and defined in this Agreement as the “Property.”  

 
WHEREAS, Buyer desires to acquire additional water and water rights and additional 

infrastructure and real property interests to construct additional infrastructure for its municipal 
water and utility systems and to this end, Buyer seeks to acquire the Property. 

 
WHEREAS, Seller is willing to sell the Property to Buyer and Buyer is willing to purchase 

the Property on and subject to the terms and conditions in this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Property Defined.  As used in this Agreement, the term “Property” means the 
following described property in Douglas County, Colorado:   

 
(a) Roxborough Tracts.  The real property described in Exhibit A, in fee simple, 

together with Seller’s interest in all reversions, remainders, easements, rights-of-way, 
appurtenances, hereditaments appertaining to or otherwise benefiting or used in connection with 
the fee simple real property (the “Roxborough Tracts”).   

 
(b) Roxborough Easements.  The permanent easements described in Exhibit B 

(together, the “Roxborough Easements”), together with Seller’s interest in all reversions, 
remainders, easements, rights-of-way, appurtenances, hereditaments appertaining to or otherwise 
benefiting or used in connection with the Roxborough Easements. 

 
(c) Roxborough Water Rights. The water rights described in Exhibit C (the 

“Roxborough Water Rights”), which water rights include an interest in the Meadow Ditch Water 
Rights and storage capacity in Castle Rock Reservoir No. 1, as well as certain of the rights in and 
to the Denver Basin ground water underlying the Bell Mountain Ranch Subdivision described in 
Exhibit D (the “Roxborough Ground Water Rights”).  

 



 

2 
 

(d) Roxborough Storage Capacity in Castle Rock Reservoir No. 1. The right to 
store water in Castle Rock Reservoir No. 1 pursuant to agreement dated ___________________ 
described in Exhibit E (the “Roxborough Capacity in CCR No. 1”).  

 
(e)  Roxborough Infrastructure. All buildings, structures, improvements, and 

appurtenances located on the Roxborough Tracts and Roxborough Easements and any interest 
therein, including the Plum Creek diversion, storage and delivery system, the Ravenna pipeline 
and pump station and the Bell Mountain Ranch well infrastructure (the “Roxborough 
Infrastructure”).  The principal components of the Roxborough Infrastructure are further depicted 
on Exhibit EF. 

 
(e) Roxborough Miscellaneous Property. All of Seller's right, title and interest 

in and to personal property (tangible or intangible), contracts, leases, rights of way, licenses, utility 
rights and/or capacity, approvals, decrees, permits, well permits, (including any federal, state or 
local permits or approvals) and agreements and other rights owned or used by Seller in connection 
with or appurtenant to the Roxborough Tracts, Roxborough Easements, Roxborough Water Rights 
Roxborough Ground Water Rights, Roxborough Storage Capacity in Castle Rock Reservoir No. 1  
and Roxborough Infrastructure (the “Roxborough Miscellaneous Property”), it being the intention 
of the parties that Buyer succeed to any rights and obligations of the Seller pertaining in any way 
to the Roxborough Tracts, Roxborough Easements, Roxborough Water Rights Roxborough 
Ground Water Rights, Roxborough Storage Capacity in Castle Rock Reservoir No. 1 and 
Roxborough Infrastructure. The principal components of the Roxborough Miscellaneous Property 
are further described in Exhibit FG. 

   
2. Agreement to Purchase.  Buyer agrees to purchase from Seller and Seller agrees to 

sell to Buyer the Property on and subject to the terms and conditions provided herein. 
  
3. Purchase Price; Additional Consideration.   
 

(a) Purchase Price. The purchase price (the “Purchase Price”) for the Property 
will be $2,273,000. 

 
(b) Service Agreement.  As additional consideration for the purchase of the 

Property, Buyer agrees to deliver an amount not to exceed 220 acre-feet (AF) of raw water (the 
“Ravenna Water”) between the period of October 1 through and including September 30 in any 
future calendar years (the “Water Year”) to Seller for the sole purpose of irrigation at The Club at 
Ravenna Golf Course (the “Golf Course”). Buyer reserves the right to use any of its available raw 
water supply for this purpose, including, without limitation, the Plum Creek Diversion and/or 
water stored in Chatfield Reservoir. Buyer shall maintain ownership of any and all irrigation return 
flows that accrue from the use of the Ravenna Water on the Golf Course.  

Seller shall be charged for the use of the Ravenna Water at a rate to be determined 
by Buyer using Buyer’s cost-of-service model (“Buyer’s Rate Model”). The initial rate shall beis 
$3.47 per one thousand gallons and is based on the Buyer’s 2022 operation, maintenance and 
capital replacement costs. Such rate shall be updated annually using Buyer’s Rate Model. Buyer 
shall notify Seller of any rate adjustment in accordance with Section 16(d) by no later than thirty 
(30) days prior to the start of any Water Year.   



 

3 
 

The Ravenna Water shall be delivered to the Golf Course at such times and in such 
amounts as requested by Seller; provided that the maximum rate of delivery shall not exceed one 
million (1,000,000) gallons per day consistent with the then current pumping capacity of the 
existing pump station. Billing for the Ravenna Water shall be made on a monthly basis, with 
payment in full due from Seller by no later than twenty (20) days following the date of such bill. 
Any portion of the Ravenna Water that is not delivered in any single Water Year cannot be carried 
over to the next ensuing or any future Water Year. Actual water usage shall be metered at the Golf 
Course through a meter owned by Buyer. In conjunction with installation of a meter at the Golf 
Course, Buyer will allow the Golf Course to install a check valve on the pipeline to prevent the 
irrigation pond from draining in the event of a line break. Seller shall ensure that the Golf Course 
will provide reasonable access to Buyer to read the meter as necessary and subject to Buyer’s 
policies and processes applicable to reading such meter, a copy of which shall be provided to Seller 
and the Golf Course.  

The delivery of Ravenna Water shall, at all times, be subject to the management of 
Buyer’s total water supply through Buyer’s Drought Management Plan, which Plan is available 
for review on Buyer’s “crgov.com” website. Buyer expressly reserves the right to temporarily halt 
deliveries of Ravenna Water in the event that Buyer has declared an “Emergency” or 
“Critical/Crisis” drought response stage and has discontinued all outdoor irrigation within its 
boundaries and the boundaries of its extraterritorial service area.  Except in the event of an 
emergency, Buyer agrees that it will not schedule major repair work to any component of its 
municipal water or utility system required to deliver Ravenna Water during the irrigation season 
to avoid interruption of irrigation of the Golf Course. 

If requested by Roxborough, and if Castle Rock determines that additional water is 
available, Castle Rock may deliver water beyond 220 AF in a water year at a higher-tier delivery 
rate.  This rate shall initially be $5.20 per one thousand gallons of use.  This rate shall be reviewed 
and updated annually using the Buyer’s Rate Model. 

4. Payment of Purchase Price; Earnest Money Deposit.  The Purchase Price will be 
paid by Buyer to Seller in full, adjusted for the Closing Adjustments as set forth in this Agreement, 
in cash or by wire transfer or other immediately available funds at Closing. Within ten (10) 
business days after the Agreement Date, Buyer shall tender the sum of 
________________________ Dollars ($_______) to ______________________ (the “Title 
Company”) as escrow holder, for deposit into an interest-bearing account. This deposit, together 
with any interest earned thereon, is collectively referred to as the “Earnest Money.”  Title 
Company’s receipt of the Earnest Money shall be acknowledged by its execution of this 
Agreement or a separate escrow Agreement with Seller and Buyer.  At Closing, the Earnest Money 
will be paid to Seller as a part of the Purchase Price.  

 
5. Title Insurance.   
 

(a) Title Commitment. Within ten (10) business days after the Agreement Date, 
Seller shall furnish to Buyer, at Seller’s expense, a commitment for title insurance issued by the 
Title Company, attached as Exhibit GH, committing to insure Buyer’s title in the Roxborough 
Tracts and Roxborough Easements (the “Title Commitment”). The Property insured under the Title 
Commitment shall be referred to as the “Insured Property.”   



 

4 
 

 
(b) Changes to Title.  Buyer shall have ten (10) business days after Buyer’s 

receipt of the Title Commitment or any amendment thereto to notify Seller of any objections to 
items identified in the Title Commitment or such amendment (the “Title Objection Notice”).  Any 
exceptions noted in Schedule B-2 of the Title Commitment or such amendment that are not 
objected to within the ten (10)-business day period will be deemed approved by Buyer (the 
“Permitted Exceptions”). 

   
(c) Seller’s Rights. Seller shall have until ten (10) business days after receipt of 

Buyer’s Title Objection Notice (the “Seller’s Title Cure Period”) to elect, at its sole option and 
discretion, to (i) cure any or all items to which Buyer has objected, (ii) cause such items to be 
modified in a manner which is satisfactory to Buyer, or (iii) not to cure any or all such items. 

   
(d) Buyer’s Rights. If, during Seller’s Title Cure Period, Seller fails to cure to 

the satisfaction of Buyer any objection in the Title Objection Notice, or elects not to cure, then 
Buyer may elect, as its exclusive remedy with respect to the objections in the Title Objection 
Notice, either to (i) waive the objections by written notice to Seller and proceed to Closing, or (b) 
terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to Seller within three (3) business days after 
Seller’s Title Cure Period, in which case the Earnest Money will be returned to Buyer, and 
thereafter the parties will have no further rights and will be released from all obligations hereunder 
other than those rights and obligations that expressly survive termination of this Agreement.  If 
Buyer fails to give timely notice of termination or if Buyer proceeds to Closing, Buyer will be 
deemed to have elected to waive all objections to, and accepted all of the Permitted Exceptions.  
The Closing Date established in Section 10 below shall be extended on a day-for-day basis to 
accommodate the notice and cure time periods outlined in this Section 5. 

 
(e) Title Policy. Seller will cause the Title Company to deliver to Buyer, 

promptly after the Closing, an owner’s title insurance policy issued by the Title Company insuring 
Buyer’s title to the Insured Property consistent with the Title Commitment (the “Title Policy”), 
subject only to the Permitted Exceptions identified in the Title Commitment.  Seller will pay 100% 
of the premium for the Title Policy at Closing.  Buyer, at its discretion and at its sole expense, may 
obtain an additional endorsement to the Title Commitment and establish a greater amount of the 
insurance on the Insured Property, the additional cost of which shall be paid entirely by Buyer at 
Closing. 

 
6. Water Rights Opinion.   
 

(a) Issuance of Opinion. Within ninetyten (190) calendarbusiness days after the 
Agreement Date, Seller shall furnish to Buyer, at Seller’s expense, a water rights opinion from a 
water rights attorney acceptable to Buyer NTD: does this mean Steve has to be acceptable to CR 
or his opinion, subject to the rights below, must be acceptable (the “Water Rights Opinion”). The 
Water Rights Opinion shall state that Seller has marketable title to the Roxborough Water Rights 
and Roxborough Ground Water Rights free of all liens and encumbrances and Seller shall provide 
electronic copies of all information reviewed and relied on by the attorney.  NTD:  Steve to add 
reliance on prior opinionsSeller’s Water Rights Opinion on the Meadow Ditch Water Rights may 
be based on the title opinion from Steven P. Jeffers on those water rights dated July 23, 2004, 



 

5 
 

which shall be updated through seven (7) days before the date of delivery of Seller’s Water Rights 
Opinion.   Seller’s Water Rights Opinion on the Roxborough Ground Water Rights may be based 
on the title opinion letter dated ___________ from Madoline Wallace-Gross on the Denver Basin 
ground water underlying the Bell Mountain Ranch Subdivision purchased by Buyer from Plum 
Creek CA, LLC, to the extent that opinion covers the Roxborough Ground Water Rights, which 
opinion shall be updated through seven (7) days before the date of delivery of Seller’s Water Rights 
Opinion. Buyer shall provide Seller with a copy of the opinion letter from Madoline Wallace-
Gross and all supporting documents or authorize Seller’s attorney to review those files within five 
(5) days after the Agreement Date.  

 
(b) Changes to Opinion. Buyer shall have sixtyten (160) calendarbusiness days 

after Buyer’s receipt of the Water Rights Opinion or any amendment thereto to notify Seller of 
any objections to any items impacting marketable title to the Roxborough Water Rights or 
Roxborough Ground Water Rights (the “Water Title Objection Notice”).  Any items impacting 
marketable title to the Roxborough Water Rights or Roxborough Ground Water Rights that are not 
objected to within the sixtyten (160)-calendarbusiness day period will be deemed approved by 
Buyer.   

 
(c) Seller’s Rights. Seller shall have until twentyten (120) calendarbusiness 

days after receipt of Buyer’s Water Title Objection Notice (the “Seller’s Water Title Cure Period”) 
to elect, at its sole option and discretion, to (i) cure any or all items to which Buyer has objected, 
(ii) cause such items to be modified in a manner which is satisfactory to Buyer, or (iii) not to cure 
any or all such items.   

 
(d) Buyer’s Rights. If, during Seller’s Water Title Cure Period, Seller fails to 

cure to the satisfaction of Buyer any objection in the Water Title Objection Notice, or elects not to 
cure, then Buyer may elect, as its exclusive remedy with respect to the objections in the Water 
Title Objection Notice, either to (i) waive the objections by written notice to Seller and proceed to 
Closing, or (ii) terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to Seller within three (3) business 
days after Seller’s Water Title Cure Period, in which case the Earnest Money will be returned to 
Buyer, and thereafter the parties will have no further rights and will be released from all obligations 
hereunder other than those rights and obligations that expressly survive termination of this 
Agreement.  If Buyer fails to give timely notice of termination or if Buyer proceeds to Closing, 
Buyer will be deemed to have elected to waive all objections to, and accepted all of the items in 
the Water Rights Opinion.  The Closing Date established in Section 10 below shall be extended 
on a day-for-day basis to accommodate the notice and cure time periods outlined in this Section 6. 

 
7. Environmental Site Assessment.  
 

(a) Phase 1 ESA. Within thirty (30) business days after the Agreement Date, 
Seller shall furnish to Buyer, at Seller’s expense, a phase 1 environmental site assessment of the 
Roxborough Tracts (the “Phase 1 ESA”).   

 
(b) Further Action. Buyer shall have ten (10) business days after Buyer’s 

receipt of the Phase 1 ESA to notify Seller of any recognized environmental conditions identified 
on the Roxborough Tracts that need to be further investigated and/or remediated (“Environmental 



 

6 
 

Condition Notice”). Any recognized environmental conditions noted in the Phase 1 ESA that are 
not objected to within the ten (10)-business day period will be deemed accepted by Buyer.   

 
(c) Seller’s Rights. Seller shall have until ten (10) business days after receipt of 

Buyer’s Environmental Condition Notice (the “Seller’s Environmental Remediation Period”) to 
elect, at its sole option and discretion, to (i) if Buyer requests that a further investigation be 
conducted, engage a contractor acceptable to Buyer to perform a phase 2 environmental site 
assessment (the “Phase 2 ESA”), (ii) if Buyer determines that the remediation of any or all 
recognized environmental conditions for which Buyer has given notice is necessary, escrow 
sufficient funds to allow Buyer to undertake such remediation, or (iii) not to undertake a further 
investigation and/or fund the remediation of any such recognized environmental conditions.   

 
(d) Buyer’s Rights. If, during Seller’s Environmental Remediation Period, 

Seller fails to escrow sufficient funds to undertake remediation to the satisfaction of Buyer of any 
recognized environmental condition in the Environmental Condition Notice, or elects not to 
undertake such remediation, then Buyer may elect, as its exclusive remedy with respect to the 
objections in the Environmental Condition Notice, either to (a) waive remediation by written 
notice to Seller and proceed to Closing, or (b) terminate this Agreement by giving written notice 
to Seller within three (3) business days after Seller’s Environmental Remediation Period, in which 
case the Earnest Money will be returned to Buyer, and thereafter the parties will have no further 
rights and will be released from all obligations hereunder other than those rights and obligations 
that expressly survive termination of this Agreement.  If Buyer fails to give timely notice of 
termination or if Buyer proceeds to Closing, Buyer will be deemed to have elected to waive 
remediation and accepted all of the recognized environmental conditions.   

 
(e) Further Investigation. The Closing Date established in Section 10 below 

shall be extended on a day-for-day basis to accommodate Seller’s election of the option to conduct 
further investigations as outlined in Section 7(c). In such event, Seller shall have thirty (30) 
business days from the date of such election within which to furnish a Phase 2 ESA to Buyer. The 
furnishing of such Phase 2 ESA shall restart the review and notification process set forth in this 
Section 7. 

 
8. Review of Property.   
 

(a) Inspection Period. Buyer shall have a period of sixty (60) days from the 
Agreement Date in which Buyer and Buyer’s agents, contractors, employees and permittees 
(collectively, the “Buyer Permittees”) shall verify and ascertain the suitability of the Property for 
Buyer’s intended use, in Buyer’s sole and absolute discretion (the “Inspection Period”).  Buyer 
may, at any time during the Inspection Period, enter upon the Insured Property for the purpose of 
inspecting the Insured Property, including making surveys, reports and investigations, conducting 
soils, water availability and other tests, and undertaking such other investigation of the Insured 
Property and other portions of the Property as Buyer shall deem necessary for its intended uses of 
the Property.  

 
(b) Property Documents.  Within ten (10) business days after the Agreement 

Date, Seller shall make available to Buyer and its consultants and representatives, copies of its 



 

7 
 

files and records related to the Property including the following documents in the possession or 
control of the Seller the following: all documents relating to the Roxborough Water Rights and 
Roxborough Ground Water Rights (including, but not limited to, documents related to title to and 
liens or encumbrances on the Roxborough Water Rights, Roxborough Ground Water Rights and/or 
related facilities; previous title opinions; water decrees and well permits; water rights engineering 
reports, technical reports and correspondence, including those related to the use and historical 
consumptive use of the Roxborough Water Rights for irrigation; diversion records and accounting; 
reports, invoices, and estimates regarding infrastructure condition and improvements; maps, aerial 
photos and as-built drawings; and any correspondence with federal, local or state agencies, 
including the Division of Water Resources and Colorado Department of Health and the 
Environment, concerning water rights, water supply or water quality issues), soils reports, mineral 
studies, oil, gas and mineral leases, environmental reports and studies, environmental notices 
received by Seller, plats, permits (including 404 and 402 permits form the Army Corps of 
Engineers), development agreements, topographical and other maps, engineering plans and 
reports, easement agreements, and all other information and documentation pertaining to the 
Property in the possession of or known to Seller or Seller’s agents (collectively, the “Property 
Documents”).  Except as described in Section 6(a), Buyer acknowledges and agrees that all 
Property Documents delivered or made available by Seller to Buyer are for Buyer’s information 
and use only, and Seller makes no representation or warranty as to the accuracy or completeness 
of any such Property Documents or Buyer’s ability to use any of such Property Documents.  Buyer 
acknowledges that it shall be solely responsible for verifying all information contained in the 
Property Documents, including the completeness, accuracy and applicability of the Property 
Documents.    

 
(c) Inspection Risk. Buyer will not make any permanent modifications to the 

Insured Property and will leave the Insured Property in substantially the same condition as existed 
at the time of entry upon the Property by Buyer or Buyer Permittees.  Any entry on the Insured 
Property by Buyer or Buyer Permittees shall be at the sole risk, cost and expense of Buyer. Buyer 
shall pay when due all costs and expenses incurred in the performance of any such inspection or 
conducting such tests and investigations and, to the extent it lawfully may, shall reimburse and 
hold harmless Seller from any loss from mechanic's liens, claims for nonpayment of such charges 
or for damages or injuries arising out of the negligent acts, willful misconduct or omissions 
hereunder by Buyer or Buyer Permittees relating to their entry onto the Insured Property, including 
those persons performing such inspections or conducting such tests and investigations.  
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the obligations of Buyer under this 
Section 8(c) will survive the Closing or the termination of this Agreement by Buyer or Seller for 
any reason.   

 
(d) Termination. If Buyer fails to provide Seller with written notice that it will 

terminate this Agreement (the “Termination Notice”) on or before the expiration of the Inspection 
Period in the manner set forth in the Notice provision in Section 14.4, Buyer shall be deemed to 
have elected to accept the conditions of the Property discovered in the Inspection Period. In the 
event Buyer provides Seller with the Termination Notice on or before the expiration of the 
Inspection Period, the Earnest Money shall be refunded to the Buyer, none of the Parties shall be 
further bound hereby, and this Agreement shall be of no further force or effect (subject to the 
provisions of this Agreement which expressly survive such termination). Seller shall have no right 



 

8 
 

to cure if Buyer elects to terminate the Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.  
 

9. Other Agreements and Covenants. 
 

(a) No Statements of Opposition.  Seller agrees that, following Closing, it will 
not file a statement of opposition or otherwise participate as a party in certain water court 
applications that Buyer may file with respect to Buyer’s use of the Roxborough Water Rights and 
Roxborough Ground Water Rights in Buyer’s municipal water system.  The terms of such 
agreement shall be as set forth in the form of agreement attached hereto as Exhibit H (“No 
Statement of Opposition Agreement”) and shall be limited solely to objectionsapplications by 
Buyer  related to the Roxborough Water Rights and Roxborough Ground Water Rights. Seller shall 
not be precluded from filing a statement of opposition with respect to any other water rights that 
may be included in Buyer’s applications. 

 
(b) Post-Closing Assistance Agreement.  Following Closing, Seller will 

provide Buyer with reasonable assistance in the transition of the administration and the operation 
of the Property in Douglas County, Colorado, and the application for a change of water right for 
the Roxborough Water Rights, including, if necessary, testimony about the use and historical 
consumptive use of the Roxborough Water Rights.  The terms and conditions of such assistance 
shall be as set forth in the form of agreement attached hereto as Exhibit I (the “Post-Closing 
Assistance Agreement”).  At Closing, Seller and Buyer will execute the Post-Closing Assistance 
Agreement.  

 
10. Closing.  The closing of the purchase and sale (the “Closing”) of the Property shall 

occur on such date as mutually agreed upon by Buyer and Seller, but in no event later than one 
hundred twenty (120)sixty (60) days after the close of the Inspection Period (the “Closing Date”). 
The Closing will be held at the offices of the Title Company, or at such other location as mutually 
agreed upon by Buyer and Seller or, if the parties so agree, through an escrow-type closing with 
the Title Company acting as the closing agent.  

 
11. Actions at Closing.  The following will occur at Closing in a sequence prescribed 

in mutually agreeable Closing instructions all of which shall be mutually and concurrently 
dependent: 

 
(a) Seller shall execute and deliver to Buyer one or more special warranty 

deed(s) for the Roxborough Tracts in the form attached hereto as Exhibit J, conveying the 
Roxborough Tracts free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except for the Permitted 
Exceptions.   

 
(b) Seller shall execute and deliver to Buyer one or more assignment(s) of 

easements in the form attached hereto as Exhibit K, conveying the Roxborough Easements free 
and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except for the Permitted Exceptions. 

 
(c) Seller shall execute and deliver to Buyer one or more special warranty 

deed(s) for the Roxborough Water Rights and the Roxborough Ground Water Rights in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit L free and clear of all liens and encumbrances. 



 

9 
 

 
(d) Seller and Buyer shall execute and deliver one or more bill(s) of sale, 

assignment(s) and assumption agreement(s) in the form attached hereto as Exhibit M conveying 
the Roxborough Infrastructure and the Roxborough Miscellaneous Property to Buyer, and all rights 
and obligations thereunder, to the extent assignable, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances.   

 
(e) Seller shall fill out, execute and deliver and Historical Use Affidavit in the 

form attached hereto as Exhibit N detailing the use of the Roxborough Water Rights. 
 
(f) Seller and the Affiliated Entities shall execute and deliver the Affiliated 

Entities Affirmation Agreement. 
 
(g) Seller, Buyer and the Affiliated Entities shall execute the No Statement of 

Opposition Agreement. 
 
(h) Seller and Buyer shall execute the Post-Closing Assistance Agreement.  
 
(i) Buyer shall deliver to the Title Company as the closing agent the Purchase 

Price, less the Earnest Money, in cash or by wire transfer or other immediately available funds. 
 
(j) The Purchase Price proceeds delivered by Buyer to the Title Company shall 

be delivered to Seller. 
 
(k) Seller and Buyer will execute and deliver to the Title Company the 

appropriate parties’ Settlement Statements. 
 
(l) Each party will deliver to the other party and the Title Company such 

agreements, assignments, conveyances, instruments, documents, typical affidavits required by the 
Title Company, certificates and the like as may be reasonably required by either party or the Title 
Company to consummate the purchase and sale of the Property in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement and the Title Commitments. 

 
(m) The following adjustments (“Closing Adjustments”) will be made as of the 

Closing to the Purchase Price: 
 
(i) If applicable, real property taxes for the year of the Closing will be 

apportioned to the date of Closing based upon the most recent levy and assessment.  Such 
apportionment will be a final settlement between the parties.  Any special assessments 
against the Property as of the date of Closing will be paid by Seller at Closing.  Seller shall 
also pay 100% of the premium for the Title Policy. 

 
(ii) Buyer will pay the recording fee for the deeds conveying the 

Roxborough Tracts, Roxborough Water Rights, and Roxborough Ground Water Rights and 
any other recorded documents and all of the cost of any endorsements and additional 
coverage to the Title Policy that Buyer desires.  Seller will pay one-half of the premium 
for the Title Policies.  The parties will share closing fees of the Title Company and all 



 

10 
 

documentary fees equally.  Each party will be responsible for payment of its own attorneys’ 
fees.  All other costs of Closing will be prorated between the parties as is customary in 
commercial closings in this State. 

 
12. Representations and Warranties of Seller. Seller represents and warrants to Buyer 

that each of the following statements is true and correct as of the Agreement Date and will be true 
and correct as of the Closing Date: 

 
(a) Seller is a governmental entity duly formed and validly existing in the State 

of Colorado.   
 
(b) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, there is no litigation, condemnation or 

eminent domain action, or administrative, governmental or other proceeding, pending or 
threatened, against Seller and/or affecting the ownership or use of the Property which, if decided 
or determined adversely, would have a material adverse effect on the ability of Seller to sell the 
Property pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
(c) Seller has full right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement and 

to perform the obligations hereunder, and this Agreement and all other documentation required by 
Buyer hereunder, when duly executed and delivered, shall constitute the valid and binding 
obligation of Seller, enforceable in accordance with such terms. The individual executing this 
Agreement on behalf of Seller is authorized to do so.   

 
(d) Seller has not retained any broker, agent or finder or agreed to pay any 

commissions or finders’ fees in connection with this Agreement or the transfer of the Property.  To 
the extent permitted and provided by law, Seller shall indemnify and hold harmless Buyer from 
liability for any fees or commissions owing pursuant to this transaction caused by breach of this 
representation. 

 
(e) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, no other person has any legal or equitable 

right to use the Property except as described in the Roxborough Easements or the Permitted 
Exceptions. 

 
(f) Seller, to the best of its knowledge, is unaware of any material Property 

Document in its possession that Seller has not produced or made available to Buyer.  
 
(g) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, all of the Roxborough Water Rights, 

Roxborough Ground Water Rights, and any decrees therefor are in full force and effect and no 
portion of the Roxborough Water Rights have been abandoned. 

 
(h) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, (i) there has been no placement, 

generation, transportation, storage, release, treatment or disposal at the Property of any “Hazardous 
Substances,” as defined herein; and (ii) Seller has not received from or given to any governmental 
authority or other person or entity any notice or other communication or agreement relating in any 
way to the presence, generation, transportation, storage, release, treatment or disposal by Seller of 
any Hazardous Substances on the Property.  In addition, to the best of Seller’s knowledge, there is 



 

11 
 

no pending, threatened litigation, proceedings or investigations before any administrative agency 
in which the reference, release, threat of release, placement, generation, transportation, storage, 
treatment or disposal in, on or under the Property, of any Hazardous Substances has been alleged.  
For purposes of this Agreement,  

 
(i) “Environmental Laws” means all federal, State and local laws, 

whether common laws, court or administrative decisions, statutes, rules, regulations, 
ordinances, court orders and decrees, and administrative orders and all administrative 
policies and guidelines concerning action levels of a governmental authority (federal, State 
or local) now or hereafter in effect relating to the environment, public health, occupational 
safety, industrial hygiene, any Hazardous Substance (including, without limitation, the 
disposal, generation, manufacture, presence, processing, production, release, storage, 
transportation, treatment or use thereof), or the environmental conditions on, under or about 
the Property, as amended and as in effect from time to time (including, without limitation, 
the following statutes and all regulations thereunder as amended and in effect from time to 
time:  the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 
1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq.; the Superfund Amendments and 
Reauthorization Act of 1986, Title III, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11001 et seq.; the Clean Air Act, 42 
U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq.; the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 300(f) et seq.; the Solid 
Waste Disposal Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 et seq.; the Hazardous Materials Transportation 
Act, as amended, 49 U.S.C. §§ 1801 et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 
as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 et seq.; the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 
amended, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 et seq.; the Toxic Substances Control Act of 1976, 15 U.S.C. 
§§ 2601 et seq.; and the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 651 et seq.; and 
any successor statutes and regulations to the foregoing; and 

 
(ii) “Hazardous Substances” means (a) all chemicals, materials and 

substances defined as or included in the definition of “hazardous substances,” “hazardous 
wastes,” “hazardous materials,” “extremely hazardous wastes,” “restricted hazardous 
wastes,” “toxic substances,” “toxic pollutants,” “contaminants” or “pollutants,” or words 
of similar import, under any applicable Environmental Law; and (b) all other chemicals, 
materials and substances, exposure to which is prohibited, limited or regulated by any 
governmental authority, including, without limitation, asbestos and asbestos-containing 
materials in any form, lead-based paint, radioactive materials, polychlorinated biphenyls 
(“PCBs”), and substances and compounds containing PCBs. 

 
13. Buyer’s Representations and Warranties.  Buyer represents and warrants to Seller 

that each of the following statements is true and correct as of the Agreement Date and will be true 
and correct as of the Closing Date: 

 
(a) Buyer is a governmental entity duly formed and validly existing in the State 

of Colorado. 

(b) Buyer has all requisite power, corporate and otherwise, to execute, deliver 
and perform its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, that the execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement and the documents to be executed and delivered pursuant to this 
Agreement have been duly authorized by it, and that upon execution and delivery, this Agreement 



 

12 
 

and all documents to be executed and delivered pursuant to this Agreement will constitute its legal, 
valid and binding obligation, enforceable against it in accordance with their terms. 

(c) The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Buyer is authorized 
to do so. 

(d) Buyer has not retained any broker, agent or finder or agreed to pay any 
commissions or finders’ fees in connection with this Agreement or the transfer of the Property.  To 
the extent permitted and provided by law, Buyer shall indemnify and hold harmless Seller from 
liability for any fees or commissions owing pursuant to this transaction caused by Buyer’s breach 
of this representation. 

(e) If prior to Closing, Buyer obtains knowledge that any of the covenants, 
representations or warranties of Seller in this Agreement are not true or correct, and Buyer deems 
such inaccuracy to be material to Buyer, then Buyer shall promptly notify Seller in writing of the 
same in order to afford the Seller a reasonable opportunity to cure the same prior to Closing. 

14. No Other Warranties.  Buyer has made, and will make, its own independent 
inspection and investigation of the Property and the Property Documents, and, in entering into this 
Agreement and purchasing the Property, Buyer is relying upon and will rely solely on such 
inspection and investigation of the Property and the Property Documents.  Except for the 
representations and warranties expressly set forth in (i) this Agreement, (ii) the Water Rights 
Opinion described in Section 6(a), and (iii) the documents executed by Seller at Closing, Buyer 
acknowledges and agrees that neither Seller nor anyone acting on behalf of Seller has not made, 
does not make and specifically negates and disclaims any representations or warranties 
whatsoever, whether expressed or implied, oral or written, past, present or future concerning the 
Property. Except as otherwise provided herein, BUYER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT TO THE 
MAXIMUM EXTENT ALLOWED BY LAW, THE SALE OF THE PROPERTY WILL BE 
MADE IN AN “AS IS” CONDITION, WITH ALL FAULTS.  Buyer acknowledges that the 
Purchase Price is based in part on the fact that there are no other representations and warranties 
and that if Seller were required to give any additional representations and warranties the Purchase 
Price would be materially higher.    

15. Default, Remedy and Termination.   

(a) Buyer Default.  It is hereby agreed that Seller’s damages may be difficult to 
ascertain. The Earnest Money constitutes a reasonable liquidation of Seller’s damages and is 
intended not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages.  If the transaction contemplated herein is not 
consummated on or before the Closing Date solely as a result of the default by Buyer of its 
obligations hereunder, as Seller’s sole and exclusive remedy, the Title Company shall pay the 
Earnest Money to Seller as liquidated damages and in full settlement of any claims for damages. 
Whereupon, Buyer shall have no further liability or obligation hereunder to Seller and no other 
remedy shall be available for Buyer’s breach of this Agreement; provided, however, that Seller 
shall also be entitled to enforce Buyer’s obligations that expressly survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 



 

13 
 

(b) Seller’s Default.  If the transaction contemplated herein is not consummated 
on or before the Closing Date solely as a result of a default by Seller of its obligations hereunder, 
Buyer shall be entitled to one of the following remedies as its sole and exclusive remedy: (i) the 
right to cancel this Agreement, in which event this Agreement shall terminate and be of no further 
force or effect and the Title Company will refund to Buyer the Earnest Money; or (ii) seek specific 
performance of this Agreement; provided however, that unless Buyer has provided written notice 
to Seller and the Title Company no later than ninety (90) days from the Closing Date that Buyer 
has elected to commence an action for specific performance, Buyer shall be deemed to have 
irrevocably chosen the foregoing option (i).  In the event of any such termination, Seller shall be 
entitled to enforce Buyer’s obligations that expressly survive the termination of this Agreement. 

16. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado and applicable federal law. 

(b) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

(c) Further Assurance.  Each of the parties hereto, at any time and from time to 
time, will execute and deliver such further instruments and take such further action as may 
reasonably be requested by the other party hereto, in order to cure any defects in the execution and 
delivery of, or to comply with or accomplish the covenants and agreements contained in this 
Agreement and/or any other agreements or documents related thereto. 

(d) Notices.  If under the terms of this Agreement, notice is to be provided to 
any party, said notice shall be deemed provided upon (i) personal delivery, (ii) three (3) business 
days after the mailing of the same by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, (iii) 
when delivered (and signed for) by an overnight delivery service, or (iv) when delivered by email 
transmission for which automatic confirmation or written acknowledgement has been received, 
addressed in each case as follows:  

 
If to Seller: Roxborough Water and Sanitation District. 
 Attn: Barbara Biggs, General Manager 
 6222 N. Roxborough Park Road 
 Littleton, CO 80125 
 barbara@roxwater.org 
 
With a copy to: Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C._________________________ 
 Attn: Alan Pogue_________________________ 
 4725 S. Monaco St., Suite 360_________________________ 
 Denver, CO 80237_________________________ 

 apogue@isp-law.com 
 

If to Buyer: Town of Castle Rock 
 Attn: Director of Castle Rock Water 
 175 Kellogg Court 

mailto:apogue@isp-law.com


 

14 
 

 Castle Rock, CO  80109 
 mmarlowe@crgov.com  
 
with a copy to: Town of Castle Rock 
 Attn: Town Attorney 
 100 N. Wilcox Street 
 Castle Rock, CO  80104 
 mhyman@crgov.com  
 
with a copy to: Lyons Gaddis. PC 
 Attn: Madoline Wallace-Gross 
 515 Kimbark Street, 2nd Floor 
 Longmont, CO 80501 
 mwg@lyonsgaddis.com 
 (As to Roxborough Water Rights and Roxborough Ground Water Rights only) 

 
Any party may change the address to which notices should be sent by giving the 

other parties written notice of the new address in the manner set forth in this paragraph.  A party 
may give any notice, instruction or communication in connection with this Agreement using any 
other means (including facsimile or first class mail), but no such notice, instruction or 
communication shall be deemed to have been delivered unless and until it is actually received by 
the party to whom it was sent and such party acknowledges such receipt. 

(e) No Consideration of Drafter.  This Agreement has been negotiated by all 
parties hereto and their counsel. It shall be given a fair and reasonable interpretation in accordance 
with its terms, without consideration or weight being given to its having been drafted by any party 
hereto or its counsel.  

(f) Attorneys' Fees.  In the event of any litigation or arbitration proceedings 
between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter of this Agreement, the prevailing party in 
such litigation or proceeding shall be awarded, in addition to the amount of any judgment or other 
award entered therein, the costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by the 
prevailing party in the litigation or proceeding. 

(g) Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended, altered or revoked only by 
written instrument executed by all of the parties to this Agreement.    

(h) Survival.  All representations and warranties of title to the Property in this 
Agreement shall merge into the representations and warranties of title in the deeds and other 
instruments of conveyance of the Property made in connection with the Closing.  All other 
representations and warranties in this Agreement of Seller and Buyer shall survive the Closing for 
a period of two (2) years following Closing, provided any claim asserted by a party for breach of 
such warranties or representations within such two-year period may proceed to resolution, 
irrespective of the expiration of such two-year period.   

(i) Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without 
the prior written consent of the other.   

mailto:mmarlowe@crgov.com
mailto:mhyman@crgov.com
mailto:mwg@lyonsgaddis.com


 

15 
 

(j) Expenses.  Each party shall pay its own costs and expenses in connection 
with the operation under and administration of this Agreement. 

(k) Waivers and Consents.  All waivers and consents given hereunder shall be 
in writing. No waiver by any party hereto of any breach or anticipated breach of any provision 
hereof by any other party shall be deemed a waiver of any other contemporaneous, preceding or 
succeeding breach or anticipated breach, whether or not similar, on the part of the same or any 
other party. 

(l) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement 
between the parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings.  If any other 
provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, no other provision shall be affected 
by such holding and all of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force 
and effect.   

(m) Rights of Third Parties.  All conditions of the obligations of the parties 
hereto, warranties and representations, and all undertakings herein, except as otherwise provided 
by a written consent, are solely and exclusively for the benefit of the parties hereto, their successors 
and assigns and their successors-in-interest. No other person or entity shall have standing to require 
satisfaction of such conditions or to enforce such undertakings in accordance with their terms or 
be entitled to assume that any party hereto will refuse to complete the transaction contemplated 
hereby in the absence of strict compliance with such conditions and undertakings. No other person 
or, entity shall, under any circumstances, be deemed a beneficiary of such conditions or 
undertakings, any or all of which may be freely waived in whole or in part, by mutual consent of 
the parties hereto at any time, if in their sole discretion they deem it desirable to do so. 

(n) Construction.  Throughout this Agreement, the headings for paragraphs, 
section and articles used in this Agreement are included for purposes of convenience of reference 
only, and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of any of its terms; the singular shall 
include the plural and the plural shall include the singular; all genders shall be deemed to include 
other genders, wherever the context so requires;  and the terms “including,” “include” or 
derivatives thereof, unless otherwise specified, shall be interpreted in as broad a sense as possible 
to mean “including, but not limited to,” or “including, by way of example and not limitation.” 

(o) Exhibits.  All schedules, exhibits and addenda attached to this Agreement 
and referred to herein shall for all purposes be deemed to be incorporated in this Agreement by 
this reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

(p) Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

(q) Recordation.  Neither this Agreement or any memorandum or extract hereof 
shall be recorded.  Any recording by or on behalf of Buyer without the written consent of Seller 
will be a breach by Buyer for which there is no right to cure and for which Seller may terminate 
this Agreement.  

 [Signature pages to follow]  



 

16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of 
the Agreement Date. 

SELLER: 
 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
a Colorado special district and political subdivision  

 
By:        
 Barbara Biggs, General Manager 
 

 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )  ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ______, 2022, by 
Barbara Biggs, as General Manager, for Roxborough Water and Sanitation District. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: __________________ 
 
      __________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 
 
 

    
 
  



 

17 
 

TOWN: 
 

ATTEST:     TOWN OF CASTLE ROCK,  
acting by and through the Town of Castle Rock 
Water Enterprise 

 
 
________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Lisa Anderson, Town Clerk   Jason Gray, Mayor 
 
 
Approved as to form:   Approved as to content: 
 
 
_______________________________ ______________________________________ 
Michael J. Hyman, Town Attorney  Mark Marlowe, Director of Castle Rock Water 
 


	Agenda Sept 21 2022_FINAL 09.16.2022
	Aug 17 2022 Minutes of the Board Meeting_FINAL
	PVH GM Report_09.21.2022
	PVH July Financial Recap
	Agenda Sept 21 2022_FINAL 09.16.2022
	WTP HSP DWSD Change Order 3
	WTP HSP DWSD Change Order A.3
	WTP HSP DWSD Pay App 7
	RR TMain Change Order 3
	RR TMain Pay App 5
	PS 201 Change Order 1
	PS 201 Pay App 1
	RWSD Filter Amend2 w ExhA_HDR Exec
	Filter Optimization Study Amend No 2_09.01.2022
	RECITALS
	COVENANTS AND AGREEMENT

	Roxborough Filter Assessment Amend 2_Proposal_v2
	Roxborough Filter Assessment Amend 2_Fee Estimate_v2

	RWSD GM Report_09.21.2022
	RWSD GM Report_09.21.2022_FINAL 09.16.2022
	12.7.2022 Christmas Part Invitation
	Major municipal water providers across Colorado River Basin announce commitment to significant reductions in water use _ Denver Water

	August Ops Report 2022_09.21 Bd Mtg
	RWSD Sept22 Status Report
	RWSD Sept22 Water Graphs
	RWSD July Financial Recap
	July Financial Statements
	Agenda Sept 21 2022_FINAL 09.16.2022
	ROXBOROUGH WATER PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT_DraftC_bjb 09.12.2022
	PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
	THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated as of _________, 2022 (the “Agreement Date”) is between ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT, a Colorado special district and political subdivision (the “Seller”), and the TOWN OF CASTLE R...
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	1. Property Defined.  As used in this Agreement, the term “Property” means the following described property in Douglas County, Colorado:
	(a) Roxborough Tracts.  The real property described in Exhibit A, in fee simple, together with Seller’s interest in all reversions, remainders, easements, rights-of-way, appurtenances, hereditaments appertaining to or otherwise benefiting or used in c...
	(b) Roxborough Easements.  The permanent easements described in Exhibit B (together, the “Roxborough Easements”), together with Seller’s interest in all reversions, remainders, easements, rights-of-way, appurtenances, hereditaments appertaining to or ...
	(c) Roxborough Water Rights. The water rights described in Exhibit C (the “Roxborough Water Rights”), which water rights include an interest in the Meadow Ditch Water Rights and storage capacity in Castle Rock Reservoir No. 1, as well as certain of th...
	(d) Roxborough Storage Capacity in Castle Rock Reservoir No. 1. The right to store water in Castle Rock Reservoir No. 1 pursuant to agreement dated ___________________ described in Exhibit E (the “Roxborough Capacity in CCR No. 1”).
	(e)  Roxborough Infrastructure. All buildings, structures, improvements, and appurtenances located on the Roxborough Tracts and Roxborough Easements and any interest therein, including the Plum Creek diversion, storage and delivery system, the Ravenna...
	(e) Roxborough Miscellaneous Property. All of Seller's right, title and interest in and to personal property (tangible or intangible), contracts, leases, rights of way, licenses, utility rights and/or capacity, approvals, decrees, permits, well permit...

	2. Agreement to Purchase.  Buyer agrees to purchase from Seller and Seller agrees to sell to Buyer the Property on and subject to the terms and conditions provided herein.
	3. Purchase Price; Additional Consideration.
	(a) Purchase Price. The purchase price (the “Purchase Price”) for the Property will be $2,273,000.
	(b) Service Agreement.  As additional consideration for the purchase of the Property, Buyer agrees to deliver an amount not to exceed 220 acre-feet (AF) of raw water (the “Ravenna Water”) between the period of October 1 through and including September...
	Seller shall be charged for the use of the Ravenna Water at a rate to be determined by Buyer using Buyer’s cost-of-service model (“Buyer’s Rate Model”). The initial rate shall beis $3.47 per one thousand gallons and is based on the Buyer’s 2022 operat...
	The Ravenna Water shall be delivered to the Golf Course at such times and in such amounts as requested by Seller; provided that the maximum rate of delivery shall not exceed one million (1,000,000) gallons per day consistent with the then current pump...
	The delivery of Ravenna Water shall, at all times, be subject to the management of Buyer’s total water supply through Buyer’s Drought Management Plan, which Plan is available for review on Buyer’s “crgov.com” website. Buyer expressly reserves the righ...
	If requested by Roxborough, and if Castle Rock determines that additional water is available, Castle Rock may deliver water beyond 220 AF in a water year at a higher-tier delivery rate.  This rate shall initially be $5.20 per one thousand gallons of u...
	4. Payment of Purchase Price; Earnest Money Deposit.  The Purchase Price will be paid by Buyer to Seller in full, adjusted for the Closing Adjustments as set forth in this Agreement, in cash or by wire transfer or other immediately available funds at ...
	5. Title Insurance.
	(a) Title Commitment. Within ten (10) business days after the Agreement Date, Seller shall furnish to Buyer, at Seller’s expense, a commitment for title insurance issued by the Title Company, attached as Exhibit GH, committing to insure Buyer’s title ...
	(e) Title Policy. Seller will cause the Title Company to deliver to Buyer, promptly after the Closing, an owner’s title insurance policy issued by the Title Company insuring Buyer’s title to the Insured Property consistent with the Title Commitment (t...
	6. Water Rights Opinion.
	(a) Issuance of Opinion. Within ninetyten (190) calendarbusiness days after the Agreement Date, Seller shall furnish to Buyer, at Seller’s expense, a water rights opinion from a water rights attorney acceptable to Buyer NTD: does this mean Steve has t...
	(b) Changes to Opinion. Buyer shall have sixtyten (160) calendarbusiness days after Buyer’s receipt of the Water Rights Opinion or any amendment thereto to notify Seller of any objections to any items impacting marketable title to the Roxborough Water...
	(c) Seller’s Rights. Seller shall have until twentyten (120) calendarbusiness days after receipt of Buyer’s Water Title Objection Notice (the “Seller’s Water Title Cure Period”) to elect, at its sole option and discretion, to (i) cure any or all items...
	(d) Buyer’s Rights. If, during Seller’s Water Title Cure Period, Seller fails to cure to the satisfaction of Buyer any objection in the Water Title Objection Notice, or elects not to cure, then Buyer may elect, as its exclusive remedy with respect to ...
	7. Environmental Site Assessment.
	(a) Phase 1 ESA. Within thirty (30) business days after the Agreement Date, Seller shall furnish to Buyer, at Seller’s expense, a phase 1 environmental site assessment of the Roxborough Tracts (the “Phase 1 ESA”).
	(b) Further Action. Buyer shall have ten (10) business days after Buyer’s receipt of the Phase 1 ESA to notify Seller of any recognized environmental conditions identified on the Roxborough Tracts that need to be further investigated and/or remediated...
	(c) Seller’s Rights. Seller shall have until ten (10) business days after receipt of Buyer’s Environmental Condition Notice (the “Seller’s Environmental Remediation Period”) to elect, at its sole option and discretion, to (i) if Buyer requests that a ...
	(d) Buyer’s Rights. If, during Seller’s Environmental Remediation Period, Seller fails to escrow sufficient funds to undertake remediation to the satisfaction of Buyer of any recognized environmental condition in the Environmental Condition Notice, or...
	(e) Further Investigation. The Closing Date established in Section 10 below shall be extended on a day-for-day basis to accommodate Seller’s election of the option to conduct further investigations as outlined in Section 7(c). In such event, Seller sh...
	8. Review of Property.
	(a) Inspection Period. Buyer shall have a period of sixty (60) days from the Agreement Date in which Buyer and Buyer’s agents, contractors, employees and permittees (collectively, the “Buyer Permittees”) shall verify and ascertain the suitability of t...
	(b) Property Documents.  Within ten (10) business days after the Agreement Date, Seller shall make available to Buyer and its consultants and representatives, copies of its files and records related to the Property including the following documents in...
	(c) Inspection Risk. Buyer will not make any permanent modifications to the Insured Property and will leave the Insured Property in substantially the same condition as existed at the time of entry upon the Property by Buyer or Buyer Permittees.  Any e...
	9. Other Agreements and Covenants.
	(a) No Statements of Opposition.  Seller agrees that, following Closing, it will not file a statement of opposition or otherwise participate as a party in certain water court applications that Buyer may file with respect to Buyer’s use of the Roxborou...
	(b) Post-Closing Assistance Agreement.  Following Closing, Seller will provide Buyer with reasonable assistance in the transition of the administration and the operation of the Property in Douglas County, Colorado, and the application for a change of ...

	10. Closing.  The closing of the purchase and sale (the “Closing”) of the Property shall occur on such date as mutually agreed upon by Buyer and Seller, but in no event later than one hundred twenty (120)sixty (60) days after the close of the Inspecti...
	11. Actions at Closing.  The following will occur at Closing in a sequence prescribed in mutually agreeable Closing instructions all of which shall be mutually and concurrently dependent:
	(a) Seller shall execute and deliver to Buyer one or more special warranty deed(s) for the Roxborough Tracts in the form attached hereto as Exhibit J, conveying the Roxborough Tracts free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except for the Permitt...
	(b) Seller shall execute and deliver to Buyer one or more assignment(s) of easements in the form attached hereto as Exhibit K, conveying the Roxborough Easements free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except for the Permitted Exceptions.
	(c) Seller shall execute and deliver to Buyer one or more special warranty deed(s) for the Roxborough Water Rights and the Roxborough Ground Water Rights in the form attached hereto as Exhibit L free and clear of all liens and encumbrances.
	(d) Seller and Buyer shall execute and deliver one or more bill(s) of sale, assignment(s) and assumption agreement(s) in the form attached hereto as Exhibit M conveying the Roxborough Infrastructure and the Roxborough Miscellaneous Property to Buyer, ...
	(e) Seller shall fill out, execute and deliver and Historical Use Affidavit in the form attached hereto as Exhibit N detailing the use of the Roxborough Water Rights.
	(f) Seller and the Affiliated Entities shall execute and deliver the Affiliated Entities Affirmation Agreement.
	(g) Seller, Buyer and the Affiliated Entities shall execute the No Statement of Opposition Agreement.
	(h) Seller and Buyer shall execute the Post-Closing Assistance Agreement.
	(i) Buyer shall deliver to the Title Company as the closing agent the Purchase Price, less the Earnest Money, in cash or by wire transfer or other immediately available funds.
	(j) The Purchase Price proceeds delivered by Buyer to the Title Company shall be delivered to Seller.
	(k) Seller and Buyer will execute and deliver to the Title Company the appropriate parties’ Settlement Statements.
	(l) Each party will deliver to the other party and the Title Company such agreements, assignments, conveyances, instruments, documents, typical affidavits required by the Title Company, certificates and the like as may be reasonably required by either...
	(m) The following adjustments (“Closing Adjustments”) will be made as of the Closing to the Purchase Price:
	(i) If applicable, real property taxes for the year of the Closing will be apportioned to the date of Closing based upon the most recent levy and assessment.  Such apportionment will be a final settlement between the parties.  Any special assessments ...
	(ii) Buyer will pay the recording fee for the deeds conveying the Roxborough Tracts, Roxborough Water Rights, and Roxborough Ground Water Rights and any other recorded documents and all of the cost of any endorsements and additional coverage to the Ti...


	12. Representations and Warranties of Seller. Seller represents and warrants to Buyer that each of the following statements is true and correct as of the Agreement Date and will be true and correct as of the Closing Date:
	(a) Seller is a governmental entity duly formed and validly existing in the State of Colorado.
	(b) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, there is no litigation, condemnation or eminent domain action, or administrative, governmental or other proceeding, pending or threatened, against Seller and/or affecting the ownership or use of the Property whic...
	(c) Seller has full right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform the obligations hereunder, and this Agreement and all other documentation required by Buyer hereunder, when duly executed and delivered, shall constitute the va...
	(d) Seller has not retained any broker, agent or finder or agreed to pay any commissions or finders’ fees in connection with this Agreement or the transfer of the Property.  To the extent permitted and provided by law, Seller shall indemnify and hold ...
	(e) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, no other person has any legal or equitable right to use the Property except as described in the Roxborough Easements or the Permitted Exceptions.
	(f) Seller, to the best of its knowledge, is unaware of any material Property Document in its possession that Seller has not produced or made available to Buyer.
	(g) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, all of the Roxborough Water Rights, Roxborough Ground Water Rights, and any decrees therefor are in full force and effect and no portion of the Roxborough Water Rights have been abandoned.
	(h) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, (i) there has been no placement, generation, transportation, storage, release, treatment or disposal at the Property of any “Hazardous Substances,” as defined herein; and (ii) Seller has not received from or give...
	(i) “Environmental Laws” means all federal, State and local laws, whether common laws, court or administrative decisions, statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances, court orders and decrees, and administrative orders and all administrative policies and...
	(ii) “Hazardous Substances” means (a) all chemicals, materials and substances defined as or included in the definition of “hazardous substances,” “hazardous wastes,” “hazardous materials,” “extremely hazardous wastes,” “restricted hazardous wastes,” “...
	13. Buyer’s Representations and Warranties.  Buyer represents and warrants to Seller that each of the following statements is true and correct as of the Agreement Date and will be true and correct as of the Closing Date:
	(a) Buyer is a governmental entity duly formed and validly existing in the State of Colorado.
	(b) Buyer has all requisite power, corporate and otherwise, to execute, deliver and perform its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, that the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the documents to be executed and delivered pursu...
	(c) The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Buyer is authorized to do so.
	(d) Buyer has not retained any broker, agent or finder or agreed to pay any commissions or finders’ fees in connection with this Agreement or the transfer of the Property.  To the extent permitted and provided by law, Buyer shall indemnify and hold ha...
	(e) If prior to Closing, Buyer obtains knowledge that any of the covenants, representations or warranties of Seller in this Agreement are not true or correct, and Buyer deems such inaccuracy to be material to Buyer, then Buyer shall promptly notify Se...

	14. No Other Warranties.  Buyer has made, and will make, its own independent inspection and investigation of the Property and the Property Documents, and, in entering into this Agreement and purchasing the Property, Buyer is relying upon and will rely...

	15. Default, Remedy and Termination.
	(a) Buyer Default.  It is hereby agreed that Seller’s damages may be difficult to ascertain. The Earnest Money constitutes a reasonable liquidation of Seller’s damages and is intended not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages.  If the transaction co...
	(b) Seller’s Default.  If the transaction contemplated herein is not consummated on or before the Closing Date solely as a result of a default by Seller of its obligations hereunder, Buyer shall be entitled to one of the following remedies as its sole...

	16. Miscellaneous Provisions.
	(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado and applicable federal law.
	(b) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
	(c) Further Assurance.  Each of the parties hereto, at any time and from time to time, will execute and deliver such further instruments and take such further action as may reasonably be requested by the other party hereto, in order to cure any defect...
	(d) Notices.  If under the terms of this Agreement, notice is to be provided to any party, said notice shall be deemed provided upon (i) personal delivery, (ii) three (3) business days after the mailing of the same by registered or certified mail, ret...
	If to Seller: Roxborough Water and Sanitation District.
	Attn: Barbara Biggs, General Manager

	apogue@isp-law.com
	Any party may change the address to which notices should be sent by giving the other parties written notice of the new address in the manner set forth in this paragraph.  A party may give any notice, instruction or communication in connection with thi...
	(e) No Consideration of Drafter.  This Agreement has been negotiated by all parties hereto and their counsel. It shall be given a fair and reasonable interpretation in accordance with its terms, without consideration or weight being given to its havin...
	(f) Attorneys' Fees.  In the event of any litigation or arbitration proceedings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation or proceeding shall be awarded, in addition to the amou...
	(g) Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended, altered or revoked only by written instrument executed by all of the parties to this Agreement.
	(h) Survival.  All representations and warranties of title to the Property in this Agreement shall merge into the representations and warranties of title in the deeds and other instruments of conveyance of the Property made in connection with the Clos...
	(i) Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the prior written consent of the other.
	(j) Expenses.  Each party shall pay its own costs and expenses in connection with the operation under and administration of this Agreement.
	(k) Waivers and Consents.  All waivers and consents given hereunder shall be in writing. No waiver by any party hereto of any breach or anticipated breach of any provision hereof by any other party shall be deemed a waiver of any other contemporaneous...
	(l) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings.  If any other provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, no other provision ...
	(m) Rights of Third Parties.  All conditions of the obligations of the parties hereto, warranties and representations, and all undertakings herein, except as otherwise provided by a written consent, are solely and exclusively for the benefit of the pa...
	(n) Construction.  Throughout this Agreement, the headings for paragraphs, section and articles used in this Agreement are included for purposes of convenience of reference only, and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of any of its te...
	(o) Exhibits.  All schedules, exhibits and addenda attached to this Agreement and referred to herein shall for all purposes be deemed to be incorporated in this Agreement by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.
	(p) Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.
	(q) Recordation.  Neither this Agreement or any memorandum or extract hereof shall be recorded.  Any recording by or on behalf of Buyer without the written consent of Seller will be a breach by Buyer for which there is no right to cure and for which S...





